
7.11.2022 BOS Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 1 of 2 

Town of Andover
Board of Selectmen

Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 8th 2022 at 7:00 P.M. 

Location: virtual Zoom meeting 

Regular Meeting Agenda DRAFT 
 

Zoom Directions: 
Click here to join by computer for video/audio: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87237750412 

 
Call-in from your phone for audio: +1 646 558 8656.  

Meeting ID: 872 3775 0412 
Passcode: 092775 

 
*Please mute yourself unless you are a commission member or during Public Speak. 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Speak 

3. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 

4. Board and Commission Presentations 

a. 175th anniversary presentation  

 
5. Appointments 

6. Resignations 
 

7.   

8. Old Business  
Discuss and act upon the following: 
 
a. Finance Department employment 
b. Community Center RFP for Design Build  
c. 15 Center Street  STEAP grant 

i. Resolution of Support and Application 
d. Car charging Station at town Hall 

i. PO for install 
e. Employee Educational funding for Job skills 
f. Purchase of a Portable PA system. 
g. Emergency department Panic Buttons in Town Hall 

 
 

9. New Business 
Discuss and act upon the following:  
a. Long Hill Rd bridge Replacement 
b. Audit Status 
c. 2021-22 Financial Status 
d. Cool Program contract with town 
e.  
f. Town assistance in remedying a hoarding situation 
g. Set a date for a town meeting to elect a RHAM representative 
h. Status of RFQ for Town Consulting Engineer 

i. Motion to Hire 
 

i. Surge Suppressors for the irrigation system at the Veterans memorial field 
j. Moving the shed for Community garden 



7.11.2022 BOS Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 2 of 2 

k. Hop River homes Letter to BOS
l. Status of open board positions

i. Town treasurer
ii. Board Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

10. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
a. Monday, July 11th, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes  
b. Monday, July 25th, 2022 Special  Meeting Minutes 
 

11. Finance Department Report 
a. Revenue Summary 
b. Town Budget Summary 
c. Town Aid Road (TAR) Update 
d. Town Cash Report 
e. Over Expenditure Report 

12. Budget  
a. Appropriation Transfers 
b. Over Expenditure Requests  

13.  
a. Refunds Requests 

 
14. Department Reports 

 
a.  
b. Fire Department 
c. Burning Official 
d. Resident State Trooper 
e. Town Clerk 
f. Building Department 
g.  
h. Public Works 
i. Transfer Station 
j. Library 
k. Senior Transportation 
l. Registrars 
m. AHM 

15. Correspondence  
 

16. Public Speak  
 

17. Executive session to discuss Union Bargaining  

18. Adjournment  



Call to Order 

 

Public speak 

 

Additions /Deletions/ Changes to the 
agenda 

 

Board and Committee Presentations  
(175th anniversary committee) 

 

Appointments 

 

Resignations  Marina Pandolfi 
  



Town Report for the
8.08.22 Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting

Town Hall Operations: 

Cleaning/Custodian:  William Bell Will be painting the front entrance of the library.  He will also be power washing the town hall 
to clean up the outside 

 Office: 
 
Nothing big right now 

 Office: 
 

So far, I have not been successful finding a replacement admin assistant  
Generally busy we have a lot of projects going right now.   See the list of ongoing projects at the end of this report 
 

Working on future grant STEAP see details later in the packet, executing previous STEAP grant and the federal local bridge 
program

Still no admin assistant chosen 

Town Clerks office 
We are issuing transfer station stickers.  As of August 1, we had issued 1065 total  
Revenue from the stickers: 
April $800, May $1250, June $17,600, July $ 18,665 total so far $38,315 collected 
 

Finance Office: 
We have the draft audit from Mahoney Sable 
The auditor gave us a series of Journal entries to make to the financial software in Phoenix to correct issues that arose. 
Phoenix is rebuilt on the school server.   
Audit expenses will exceed budgeted amount significantly  

 5th, but she will be staying on part time just ofr payroll and AP until we hire her 
replacement. 
 

Building Department: 
We are live with online payments for all for the land use agencies and it appears to be going smoothly. 
 
Overall building department operations are going well. 
 
At this point the only thing we are planning on not running through permit link will be bond payments for driveway 
aprons, etc. as these are tracked separately in a bond account.   
 
 
 

Town Engineer: 

We received 14 solicitations for town Engineer.   A committee including myself, Jed Larson (PZC chair) and Ed Sarisley ( Retired 
PHD in civil engineering) narrowed it down to 4 candidates and then we interviewed 4 firms.  Nathan Jacobson, BSC, Close 
Jenson and Miller and Lenard Engineering. Adrian Mandeville also attended the interviews.    We then narrowed it down to 2 
firms.  I would like to utilize Nathan L Jacobson and would like to have a discussion about where the boundaries would be 
between what we just assign to Jacobson and when we go back out to formal RFP 

 



Public Works:

Roadside mowing is going on right now basically full time.
Shoddy Mill rail trail crossing is complete 
Drainage mostly complete on Shoddy Mill Rd 
Received Notice to procede for 2000 STEAP grant and working on getting a contract with B and W paving ( Low bidder on the 
RFP)
Next Up is Gorman Inc Chipsealing in the next few weeks 

Debris management 
If we are going to set ourselves up for claiming it during FEMA storms there is an enormous amount of paperwork and we would 

 the storm if we do it.  This will take a lot of resources and we will need to work out a 
management process and documentation.  Alternatively, we would hire a firm to document for this would we pay a retaining 
fee, etc.  All of this must be done ahead of time.   
Still working on this in the background 

Tree Work: 
Distinctive Tree care working on Gilead.  They are willing to honor the pricing from our original bid in 2020 so we are not sending 

this back to RFP.   Eversource agreed to contribute $35,000 and to  Partner with us on the work.     Anticipating that Gillead rd 
will be a major focus of our efforts this year.  We have hired Tennant for so individual trees that needed to be addressed as they 
are more cost effective for singles   

Bunker Hill Bridge Design: 
The 30% design stage complete.  

Long Hill Rd Bridge Design 
I signed the initial intent to fund letter.  The first Project Scope meeting was held Thursday 7/7   and I met later with the state 
and contractor on site.  

Small Bridges and Culverts: 
Waiting on selection of new Engineering firm to get an RFP together for a final design for Hutchinson Rd culvert replacement 

Andover Proposed Community Senior Center: 
Still developing the RFP for a design build firm to complete the project.  

Andover Veterans Monument: 
 We are working with Randazzo design on the fertilization and week eradication program and will plan on slit seeding in August 
at some point. Overall, it looks very nice 

Times Farm Bridge: 
Working on the final close out. 

Received what should be the final state change order paperwork from the State DOT  3/15/2022 so they may finally be closing 
the project out.  We just got billed for the holdback from CJM who the states Rep is doing the closeout so still making slow 
progress.  

STEAP Grant: 

school would also like to submit for a grant.  I would think that whatever the difference between what the town asked for and 
500K would be allotted to the School to submit a second STEAP grant.   

Full approval of STEAP grant Due August 15 Currently we have: 
1. 8-24 Referral to Planning and Zoning commission on behalf of the BOS Approved see letter in the packet 
2. the asbestos and Lead Sampling,  



3. estimates from demolition contractors,  
4. materials cost for the shell,  
5. the survey is complete with topo.  We still need to file with the town clerks office.
6. Application for the ZBA for a variance for Front and Side Yard Setbacks as well as a use variance.  Variance granted at the 

July 20 meeting 
7. Engineering design for the Foundation Still in the works 
8. Met with Millennium Builders (CRCOG EZIQC approved contractor for construction) 
9. Will need a formal resolution by the BOS.  See resolution in your packet 

 

Connectivity Grant: 
Contractor has restarted work.   Project is delayed waiting on the contractor for the timber rail fence Expected start dated 
8/8/2022 for the fence.  Repair station and bike rack and picnic table installed.  On the library side the solar charger and bike 
rack installed.   
 

Town-Wide Alarm Monitoring and Repair: 
 
There was a secondary request by Jeff Murray based on feedback from employees that they wanted panic buttons installed. 
 
Possibility   We are putting together what a package would be to do this.  We would need another cellular modem, a 
monitoring service separate from the fire alarm.  Likely we would use a double button or a latch release system to cut down on 
false trips  No progress on this lately 
 
 

Budget: 
2021-22 budget finished in the black.  Spending appears to be aprox $70,000 under budget at this point- the money to pay the 
resident state trooper has been encumbered so is not part of this amount.    Resident State trooper came in way low ~$121,000
 
American Recovery Act Funding: 
We have first allotments of $478,848.04  We should be getting our second allotment sometime soon 
 
The board of selectman have voted to devote all of the American recovery act funding to construction of the community center. 

Town Hall  
 
 We installed  the  water bottle filler. 
Some one set the thermostat for the community room to 60 deg over the weekend.  The AC unit for the 

community room froze up again and leaked onto the roof in the bathroom.  To correct it installed a temp 
sensor cut off on the coil, a new secondary drain pan to the existing floor drain and rest the thermostat so it 

 
The VOIP system is up and running smoothly.    Minor issues at both the fire house ( messages not rolling to 

email) and the Library is requesting  that the fax machine be made to work again and a secondary phone 
installed in the basement 

 
 

Transfer Station 
 

Mr Lunberg completed his eagle scout project and there are now sorting bins at the transfer station.  Thank you for that work.  It 
is taking the public some time to put the right bottle in the right bins to make life easierTires are relocated to the blue building 

Safety committee quarterly  

Nothing new this month. 
 



  

 
Garden Shed Restored by the Community Garden Group  We have created a spot for it next to the fire dept shed.  

We are waiting until it is fully moved to paint it.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
Connectivity grant progress 
  Solar charger and bike rack 
 

 
 
Bike Rack and repair stand at Center St 



 
 
Shoddy Mill Rd trail crossing 
 

 
 

 
 



 



July 21, 2022

To: Andover Board of Selectmen 

Eric Anderson, Town Administrator 

From: Jed Larson, Planning and Zoning Commission Chair 

Subject: Connecticut General Statute Chapter 26 Section 8-24 referral on behalf of the Board of 
Selectmen for a municipal improvement at 15 Center Street. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission was requested by the Board of Selectmen to determine if 
demolition of the old fire house at 15 Center Street and replacing it with a new 4 bay vehicle storage 
facility at the same location is consistent with Andover’s Plan of Conservation and Development.  This 
evaluation is required by Chapter 126 section 8-24 of the Connecticut General Statutes.   

The Commission was initially briefed on the project at the June 20th meeting and further discussed at the 
July 18th meeting.  T he Commission unanimously voted that the project was consistent with the POCD 
and would in fact make a significant improvement for the town and a good use for this property.   

Sincerely, 

Jed Larson, Chair 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

  

















Municipal Certification of Resolution  - STEAP 2022

I, Carol Lee, Town Clerk of the Town of Andover, a municipality organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of Connecticut, hereby certify that the following is a true copy of the resolution adopted at the 
Board of Selectman Meeting of said municipality at the Regular Monthly Meeting held on August 8, 2022:

“RESOLVED, that Town Administrator Eric Anderson be, and hereby is, authorized to accept on 
behalf of the Town of Andover, a 2022 Connecticut STEAP Grant in the amount of $275,000 for 
Andover Municipal Parking Hub at 15 Center St); and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Town Administrator Eric Anderson is hereby authorized to enter into 
and execute any and all agreements, contracts and documents necessary to obtain said 2022
STEAP Grant with the State of Connecticut.”

AND I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the above resolution has in no way been altered, amended or revoked, 
and is in full force and effect.

AND I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that Eric Anderson is the Town Administrator of the Town of Andover, and 
has been since August 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 
_____________________ this ____ day of _________, 2022.

______________________________
Signature/Town Clerk

     Seal



1

TOWN OF ANDOVER 2022 SUMMER DAY CAMP AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, in the past, with the approval and support of the Town of Andover, CT Board of 
Selectmen, the Community Organized and Operated Latchkey, Inc. (C.O.O.L.) program of 
Andover successfully operated a summer day camp program Monday through Friday for mostly 
Andover children ages 3 or 4 to age 12, whose parent(s) or guardian(s) paid a fee to COOL.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Andover Board of Selectmen once again approve and wish to enable COOL to
operate a similar summer day camp program from _____________________________ 2022
to____________________________ , 2022, inclusive, pursuant to this Agreement, and subject 
to the requirements of State and local law and other rules and provisions, including but not 
limited to the special guidelines for summer camps established by the Connecticut Office of 
Early Childhood;  
 
WHEREFORE, it is AGREED by the parties that: 
 
On behalf of the Town of Andover, C.O.O.L. will again operate, on a fee for service basis paid by 
parents and guardians, a summer day camp on weekdays 
starting________________________,2022 and concluding on_____________________, 2022. 
_ 
The Town of Andover will make its insurance coverage secondarily available for the benefit of 
C.O.O.L., the camp, and its participants.  
 
The Town of Andover will provide C.O.O.L. with one 12 or 20 seat Senior transportation bus to 
enable C.O.O.L. personnel to transport children on “field trips,” and also provide access to the 
Town property located behind the Andover Elementary School. and 
 
In return for being enabled to use Town property and insurance of the Town at no cost payable 
to the Town to operate the summer day camp on behalf of the Town, C.O.O.L., agrees to pay 
one dollar ($1.00) to the Town, and abide by the applicable laws and requirements of the State 
of Connecticut, the Town, and an agent of the Town, the  Eastern Highlands Health District, 
pertaining to the operation of a municipally sponsored summer day camp as noted above,  
 
C.O.O.L. will provide the availability of a registered nurse on call during camping hours. C.O.O.L. 
also agrees to indemnify and hold the Town of Andover and the Town’s employees, agents and 
assigns harmless to the greatest extent permitted by the law of the State of Connecticut from 
any claims, causes of action, liability and litigation arising from C.O.O.L.’s operation of this 2022 
summer day camp; and 
 
In response to any failure of C.O.O.L. to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement deemed 
sufficiently substantial by the Board of Selectmen of the Town, the Board may vote to 
terminate this Agreement and the Town’s involvement in and support and sponsorship of this 
summer day camp upon one week’s written notice to C.O.O.L., without resort to appeal. 



2

SO AGREED, this ____________day of _________________, 2022, as follows:

TOWN OF ANDOVER, CT  

By_________________________________
Jeffrey Maguire, First Selectman           

 
 
    Date_____________________________  
                                                            
 
COMMUNITY ORGANIZED & OPERATED             
LATCHKEY, INC.    
                              
 
By_________________________________   
                                                Duly Authorized                                                        
 
Date_______________________________.          
 
 
                                  
 
 



AGREEMENT

Maryanne E. Bucher is the owner, and until July 14, 2022, the occupant of a single-family 
residence at 157 Wales Road, Andover CT 06232. 
 
Beginning on September 29, 2003, 157 Wales Road was co-owned by Maryanne E. Bucher and 
her now former husband Donald K. Bucher, but on March 16, 2021, the property was conveyed 
to Maryanne E. Bucher as sole owner by Mr. Bucher as the result of the dissolution of their 
marriage ordered by the Superior Court on January 1, 2021. 
 
As the result of an eventful July 7, 2022 visit to 157 Wales Road by animal control authorities, 
on July 14, 2022, various public officials visited Maryanne E. Bucher at her home, and as a result 
she agreed to relocate herself to the residence of a friend in Manchester, CT, due to various 
substantial violations of State and local codes regarding public health and safety at her home.

Soon thereafter, official notices of said substantial violations of the health and building codes 
were served upon Maryanne Bucher by proper officials of the Town of Andover, including those 
who administer the State building and public health codes.  

Maryanne Bucher wishes to correct the violations of the public health and safety codes, and 
also the local blight ordinance, but she lacks sufficient financial resources to do so without 
assistance from the Town of Andover or some other source. 
 
Though not legally obligated to do so, the Town of Andover is willing to try to help Ms. Bucher 
correct the public health, building code and blight violations on her property in stages by 
securing  contractors to do the work over time  and paying for it, as long as Maryanne Bucher is 
willing to reimburse the Town by agreeing to have the work done in that manner and executing 
consensual liens on the subject property in favor of the Town from time to time once any stage 
of the work is completed and billed to the Town for a certain price.   
 
Maryanne E. Bucher has been made aware that pursuant to pursuant to Connecticut General 
Statutes section 49-73b the Town of Andover is legally authorized by State law to place liens on 
her home for any expenses the Town incurs “in order to remedy a blighted condition on such 
real estate or to make it safe and sanitary under any provision of the general statutes or any 
municipal health, housing or safety codes or regulations . . .” 
 
The Town of Andover agrees that if any such lien is placed on the residence of Maryanne E. 
Bucher at 147 Wales Road, Andover, the Town will not foreclose on any lien unless a 
foreclosure or other legal action threatening the viability of any lien of the Town is legally 
initiated for any other reason by any lien holder including the revenue collector of the Town of 
Andover. 
 
With all of the foregoing firmly in mind, Maryanne E. Bucher hereby agrees to permit the Town 
of Andover to begin voluntarily assisting her to adequately address and fix any blighted 



conditions or public health and safety code violations on her residential property at 157 Wales 
Road, Andover, CT both inside and outside of the residence, to execute a consensual lien on 
said property for any of the expenses incurred by the Town as each particular expense is 
incurred, and to continue to reside elsewhere until the said premises are deemed habitable by 
the proper public health and safety code authorities; and in return, the Town agrees to assist 
Ms. Bucher to make a good faith effort to remedy said conditions in the manner set forth 
above, and as authorized by the laws of the State of Connecticut and the Town of Andover.

A copy of this duly executed Agreement shall be recorded in the Land Records of the Town of 
Andover. 

SO AGREED:

TOWN OF ANDOVER    MARYANNE E. BUCHER 

__________________________________ _____________________________________
Eric Anderson, Town Administrator Maryanne E. Bucher
Duly Authorized     
 
Date Signed________________________ Date Signed___________________________

WITNESSED BY:

__________________________________ _____________________________________
 



To Town Administrator, Eric Anderson and the Andover Board of Selectmen,

  

We, the board of directors of Hop River Homes (HRH), are requesting to meet with you 
to address the ball field lease agreement and the HRH Tax Abatement. We would like to 
avoid the delays and confusion that happened this past year regarding these two 
separate issues so would prefer to meet to discuss the concerns each of our boards 
have. 

The HRH board feels the two concerns are not linked to each other and would like to 
come to agreements for each separately. Our concerns for each are stated below.   

HRH Tax Abatement – Historically the tax abatement has been granted in 5 year 
increments since the inception of HRH. This tax abatement does benefit HRH’s budget 
and these units help full fill the state requirement for low cost housing in Andover. 

Ball Field – Our board is responsible for ensuring the safety of the HRH residents which 
is why we limit the use of the field to certain age groups and time of usage. The USDA 
has to approve any lease agreement that HRH makes.

We are available to meet the following dates and would appreciate it if your board could 
send your concerns regarding these two issues prior to the date of the meeting.  

Available dates for a meeting are Sept 13th- 28th and Oct 24th – Nov 4th.

Regards,

Hop River Homes Board of Directors
























































